ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 29, 2007
3:07 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Representative Jay Ranras
Representative Berta Gardner
Representative Kurt O son, Chair

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve Bob Buch
Representati ve Mark Neuman, Vice Chair

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 34
"An Act relating to sales of wwine by a winery licensee."

- MOVED HB 34 QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 49

"An Act relating to credit nenos, gift certificates, and gift
cards, and to wunclainmed property; and neking a violation of
certain gift card prohibitions an unlawful trade practice.”

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 34

SHORT TI TLE:. SALES BY W NERY LI CENSEE
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) LEDOUX

01/ 16/ 07 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 5/ 07

01/ 16/ 07 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 07 (H L&C, FIN

01/ 29/ 07 (H L&C AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 49
SHORT TI TLE: G FT CARDS
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) GATTO, GARDNER, SEATON, GRUENBERG

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -1- January 29, 2007



01/ 16/ 07 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 5/ 07

01/ 16/ 07 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 07 (H) L&C, FIN

01/ 29/ 07 (H) L&C AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

CHRI STI NE MARASI GAN, St aff

to Representative LeDoux

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 34 on behal f of Representative
LeDoux, sponsor.

STEVE THOMSEN, Owner

Al aska W | derness W nes

Kodi ak, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 34.

DOUGLAS “DOUG GRIFFIN, Director

Al cohol i c Beverage Control Board ("ABC Board")

Departnment of Public Safety (DPS)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during hearing on HB 34.

HEATH HI LYARD, St aff

to Representative Gatto

Al aska State Legislature

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 49 on behal f of Representative
Gatto, sponsor.

RACHEL LEW S, Project Coordi nator

Uncl ai med Property Section

Juneau O fice

Tax Division

Depart ment of Revenue (DOR)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during hearing on HB 49.

GLEN PETERSON, CARRS/ Saf eway
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: O fered coments during hearing on HB 49.

JOE GULLEY, CARRS/ Saf eway

Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during hearing on HB 49.

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 2- January 29, 2007



DAVI D DURRANT, Vi ce President

of Legal Affairs & Corporate Counci

Bl ack Hawk Net wor k

Pl easant on, CA

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during hearing on HB 49.

STEVE CLEARY, Executive Director

Al aska Public Interest Research G oup (AKPIRG

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during hearing on HB 49.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR KURT OLSON called the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:07:24 PM Represent ati ves
Gatto, LeDoux, Ranras, Gardner, and O son were present at the
call to order

HB 34- SALES BY W NERY LI CENSEE

CHAI R OLSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 34 "An Act relating to sales of wine by a winery
i censee. "

3:08: 06 PM

CHRI STINE MARASI GAN, Staff to Representative LeDoux, Al aska
State Legislature, began by stating that HB 34 encourages Ww ne
production in Al aska. Alaskan wineries are snall “nmom and pop”
busi nesses. The intention of HB 34 is to create a |evel playing
field, in order for in-state wineries to conplete with those
out - of - st at e.

3:09: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER commented that HB 34 “nakes a |ot of
sense.” She inquired as to whether the sponsor is aware of any
private organi zations in opposition to the bill.

M5. MARASI GAN replied that there is concern regarding the phone
and internet sale of alcohol. She opined that this is a “very
valid” concern; however, research done [by the Federal Trade
Commi ssion] on the recent suprene court decision regarding
“interstate” wne sales versus “intrastate” wne sales, has
shown that the purchase of wine by mnors is unlikely.

3:10: 51 PM

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 3- January 29, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE CGATTO offered his understanding that currently,
five gallons or less may be sold on the prem ses or to a person
out - of - st at e. HB 34 would allow off-prem ses sales to persons
within the state of Al aska. Referring to a small wnery in
Kodi ak, he commented that HB 34 would allow a person to call the
af orenenti oned wi nery and order a bottle of wine to be shipped.

M5. MARASI GAN replied that this is correct.
3:12: 00 PM
STEVE THOVSEN, Omer, Al aska W/l derness Wnes, stated that he

is in favor of HB 34, adding that it “would be a great help.”
In regard to a previous question regarding out-of-state sal es,

he stated that currently, this is not allowed. He said “The
state has said they won’t prosecute it ... but ... nobody wll
ship it, because it is technically still against the |aw.”
3:13: 03 PM

CHAI R OLSON offered his understanding that a person can purchase
wine on the prem ses and take it home; however, if nore wine is
requested later, |egal shipnent of the wine is unavail abl e.

MR. THOVSEN replied that this is correct. He explained that the
current | anguage states that in order for the sale to occur, the
i ndi vidual nust be “on the |icensed prem ses.”

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted that the bill contains references to
“nore than five gallons,” along with “not nore than five
gallons.” He requested clarification regarding the problemthat
IS occurring.

MR. THOMSEN replied that “not nore than five gallons” applies to
i ndi vi dual buyers, while “nore than five gallons” applies to a
person who holds a liquor license, such as a liquor distributor.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO brought attention to the use of “or” in

line 13 of the bill, and opined that this would not be limted
to “licensed individual s.”
3:15: 34 PM

MR. THOVSBEN replied that according to federal law, this would
still only apply to Iicensed individuals.

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -4- January 29, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO commented that HB 34 only applies to state
I aw. He asked for clarification as to whether federal |aw
allows the sale of nore than five gallons to an individual who
does not hold a liquor |icense.

MR. THOVSEN replied that the Al coholic Beverage Control Board
("ABC Board") has interpreted this to nean “only |icensees.”

3:16:49 PM
DOUGLAS “DOUG &RIFFIN, Director, Alcoholic Beverage Control

Board ("ABC Board"), Departnent of Public Safety (DPS), in
regard to the aforenentioned question, agreed that the |anguage

i s confusing. He explained that wusually, quantities over five
gallons would be to a wholesaler, and is not for personal use
He stated that “licensed under this title” refers to a person

licensed in the state of Alaska, while “or in another state or
country” would apply to a person licensed in another state or
country. He stated that the current law is “somewhat archaic.”
The concern regarding the sale of alcohol to underage persons is
not a concern due to the nature of the product, as well as the
price. The wines that will be made in Al aska are unlikely to be
consi dered by underage drinkers.

MR CRIFFIN stated that there is also concern regarding the
shi pmrent of alcohol to “dry” comunities. He expl ai ned that
there are laws allowing package stores to ship by witten
orders, adding that the ABC Board works w th packages stores to
ensure that they are aware of the comunities they nmay not ship
product to. This information would also be shared with the
Wi neries, he said. He opined that the winery products are “less
likely to be attractive” to a person attenpting to get al cohol
to a “dry” community. The ABC Board has no objection to HB 34.

3:21: 00 PM
REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS sai d:

| always appreciate it when the ABC Board is
contributing to the economc developnent of our
communities, and nmaking it easier for us to conduct
comerce, wthin the paraneters and boundaries that we
set. And whenever we venture into these — nobre vague
areas, where the line is blurred, | appreciate both
t he sponsor and the ABC Board helping to clarify that.
So that ... all parties who are parcel to the economc
transaction can participate and keep it clean.

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 5- January 29, 2007



MR GRIFFIN comented that this is one situation where the
governnment is playing “catch up” with the industry as it grows.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO poi nted out that HB 34 does not change |ine
13, with reference to “another state or country.” He stated
that this has been allowed and will continue to be all owed. He
asked if this is the ABC Boards interpretation.

MR. GRIFFIN agreed that this is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked whether the ABC Board feels there
shoul d be reference to “legal age to purchase.”

MR GRIFFIN replied that this is a drafting issue. He pointed
out that other provisions in Title 4 contain restrictions
regarding “legal age to purchase,” although it is possible to
insert the aforenentioned |anguage into HB 34 for enphasis. He
added that the ABC Board woul d not have a problemw th this.

3:25:30 PM

M5. MARASI GAN agreed that it is currently illegal for a person
|l ess than 21 years of age to purchase alcohol in the state of
Al aska. In addition, the statutes affecting breweries and
br ewpubs do not reenphasize this restriction.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO inquired as to whether every state
prohibits the sale of alcohol to individuals who are |less than
21 years of age.

M5. MARASI GAN of fered her understanding that this is correct.

MR. GRIFFIN agreed that this is correct. He said “in the area
of alcohol law, that's one area that’s fairly uniform \Wich is
pretty unusual.”

3:27:42 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noved to report HB 34 out of comittee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal

notes. There being no objection, HB 34 was reported out of the
House Labor and Commrerce Standi ng Comrittee.

HB 49-3 FT CARDS

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 6- January 29, 2007



CHAI R OLSON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 49, "An Act relating to credit nmenos, gift
certificates, and gift cards, and to unclained property; and
making a violation of certain gift card prohibitions an unl awf ul
trade practice.”

3:28:33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO, speaking as the sponsor of HB 49,
explained that gift cards are often purchased as a nore
convenient gifting option. He relayed an exanple of an elderly
person who chooses to purchase a gift card for his or her
gr anddaught er . These gift cards often have a “dornancy fee”
which is deducted nonthly from the remaining balance, as well as
an “activation fee” of $5 or nore. Additionally, sone cards may
include expiration dates which do not conform to Alaska's
uncl ai med property | aws. The intent of HB 49 is to protect
consuners from unnecessary fees, in addition to maintaining
pur chasi ng power .

3:31:50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS voi ced support for HB 49. He comment ed
that this issue affects all consuners, regardl ess of age.

3:33:19 PM

MR. HLYARD, Staff to Representative Gatto, Alaska State
Legislature, in response to a question from Representative
LeDoux, explained that two different types of gift cards exist.
The first is an “electronic gift certificate,” which contains a
“pre-l oaded” anount, and works in the sane way as a paper gift
certificate. The second type is a “credit |ogo” card, which
works like a credit card. These are issued by banks, and
contain a specified anobunt that can be used in various
| ocati ons. The electronic gift certificates do not typically
have activation or dormancy fees, which are nore conmon wth
credit | ogo cards.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX offered her wunderstanding that prepaid
phone cards also expire. She inquired as to why this was not
i ncluded in HB 49.

MR. HLYARD replied that the focus was gift cards, therefore
this was not consi dered.

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -7- January 29, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS stated that, as a small business owner, he
receives at least one solicitation per nonth offering to convert
paper gift certificates to electronic form Whil e he has not
chosen to pursue this, nany features are available. H s
busi ness sold $50,371 in gift certificates during the nonth of
Decenber [ 2006] , while redeenming $8,611 worth of gift
certificates. He explained that in January or February, this is
reversed, with nore guests redeemng gift certificates. He
noted that the gift certificates do not expire, although they do
have an “issuance date.”

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO, in regard to airline mles, offered his

understanding that 50 percent are never redeened. He comment ed
that Alaska Airlines does not have an expiration date for its
m | eage pl an. He surmised that a “fair anount” of gift cards
are never redeened. This, he said, beconmes a “gift to the
seller.”

3:39:46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER pointed out that wunder current |[aw,
uncl ai mred property belongs to the state. The value of any
unredeened gift cards should, she said, revert back to the
state. The state would then attenpt to find the original owner.

She opined that “this never happens.” She suggested that the
bill be anended to address this issue.
3:42: 00 PM

RACHEL LEWS, Project Coordinator, Unclaimed Property Section,
Juneau O fice, Tax Dvision, Departnent of Revenue (DOR)
explained that the state acts as a custodian, holding unclained

property until the owner or the owner’s heir is |ocated. The
Unclaimed Property Section (“Unclainmed Property”) currently
hol ds the follow ng: bank accounts, un-cashed payroll checks,
i nsurance reinbursenent, stocks, nutual funds, cashiers and
travel ers checks, and estate distributions. Last vyear, she
said, there was $58 billion in gift card sales in the United
States, of which an estimated 5-10 percent will never be used

In addition, around $8 billion in gift cards will either expire,
be m splaced, or will sinply not be redeenmed. Approximtely 45
percent of adults have purchased gift cards within the |ast
year, she said. There are various reasons for purchasing gift

cards, and they are used for many different types of purchases.
Currently, she said, 10 states are wrking on gift card
| egi sl ation. Last year, 19 states addressed gift cards. She

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 8- January 29, 2007



expressed concern wth renoving |anguage from the Unclained
Property Act.

3:45:35 PM

CHAIR OLSON inquired as to how nuch wunclained property is
recovered.

M5. LEWS replied that $58 thousand in unclainmed gift cards has
been recover ed.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX questioned why the consumer woul d purchase
a gift card rather than sinply witing a check.

M5. LEWS replied that many consuners find gift cards to be nore
appropri at e.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO opined that giving a child a gift card is
easier, as the parent does not have to go to the bank in order
to cash it.

CHAIR OLSON asked what percentage of the total unclained
property were unclained gift cards.

M5. LEWS replied that she does not have this information.

However, the current year has resulted in $6.6 mllion in
uncl ai med property thus far. She added that oftentines, gift
certificates are “bypassed” during the reporting cycle. In

response to an additional question, she agreed that gift cards
do not account for a very large percentage of unclained

property.
3:48: 03 PM

GLEN PETERSON, District Manager, CARRS/ Safeway, conmented that
as one of the largest sellers of gift cards in Al aska,
CARRS/ Saf eway recognizes and shares the states interest in
consuner protection.

3:49: 02 PM

JOE GQGULLEY, District Mnager, CARRS/ Safeway, explained that
CARRS/ Saf eway issues its own gift cards, as well as “third-
party” gift cards; however, no “closed universe” gift cards with
expiration dates are sold. G ft cards are generally defined as
“instruments that contain value that may be redeenmed for goods
and services sold by the retailer, which includes cards used by

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - O- January 29, 2007



t he purchaser or by another person to whom the card was given.”
Referring to Section 3(f)(2)(A), he expressed concern that the
seller and issuer of the card would not know whether the card
was purchased for personal use or as a gift for another person
In addition, he expressed concern with the new definition of
“gift card” versus the definition of “gift certificate,” which
is renmoved by the bill. In regard to the new definition for
“gift card,” he stated that this does not address “re-I|oadable”
cards.

MR.  GULLEY then brought attention to Section 3(e). Thi s
section, he said, does not specify a fixed amount, and would
therefore “inpose a substantial adm nistrative burden on al

parties associated.” He surmsed that this is taken from
Massachusetts state law, which nany states have used as a
reference, including Wshington State. He explained that

currently, CARRS/ Safeway follows the Washington state |aw, which
requires that cash be refunded at the request of the cardhol der,

if the remaining gift card value is less than $5. He opi ned
that consuners are better protected when state laws are
consi stent. If the original card value was |ess than $50, this
woul d require cash redenption at |ower |evels than CARRS/ Saf eway
currently offers. He stated that this would “potentially harni
the card holder. Additionally, he reiterated that the purchaser
of the card is “not necessarily the final ... user of the card,”

which is not addressed in the bill.

MR. GULLEY expressed concern regarding the treatnent of paper
gift certificates in [Section 2(11)(A)], in addition to the
“interplay” between the aforenentioned section and [Section
2(11)(B) (iv). Moving on, he stated that HB 49 does not
differentiate between “open universe” cards and “closed
uni verse” cards. He explained that “open universe” cards my be
redeened at |ocations other than those appearing on the face of

the card, while “closed universe” cards may not. O her states,
he said, have addressed expiration date issues with regard to
the difference between the aforenentioned cards. Finally, he

said “Consuners ultimately vote with their dollars, and if a
busi ness does not treat their custoners ethically and correctly,
they will certainly not get very many votes, and nost |ikely
will not be in business in the future.” CARRS/ Saf eway, he said,
is available to assist with research and interpretation as to
how these changes may affect the end-user. He stated that
CARRS/ Saf eway wi shes to protect the consuners of Al aska.

3:54: 04 PM

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -10- January 29, 2007



MR. HI LYARD expressed willingness to work with CARRS/ Saf eway and
address any concerns in order to “craft a better bill.”

CHAIR OLSON stated his intention to hold the bill in order to
all ow any concerns to be addressed.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER requested to see M. Qilley’'s witten
testinmony, in order to address specific concerns.

MR. CGULLEY agreed to nmake this information available to the
conmi ttee.

3:56: 09 PM

DAVI D DURRANT, Vice President of Legal Affairs & Corporate
Council, Black Hawk Network, explained that Black Hawk Network
is a subsidiary of Safeway which handles third-party gift cards,
in addition to prepaid instrunent distribution. He stated that
any gift card which does not have an expiration date or dormancy
fee, wll remain open “for the life of the card.” This, he
said, is one concern regarding the interplay between the
provi sions nmentioned by the previous speaker. He stated that he
is famliar with the laws of many states, and would be willing
to work with legislators to craft a bill which takes the best
provi sions from each. He noted that over the 2006 holiday
season, abuse of gift cards was reported by the press. Wi | e
consuner protection is inportant, it is also inportant for

consuners to have a satisfactory experience.
3:59: 35 PM

MR. DURRANT, in response to a question from Representative
Ranras, stated that the 90 percent rule included in Section 3
would “tend to be admnistratively burdensone,” as this may
require the card issuer to track the amount of funds remaining
on the card. This would be a challenge if the card was “re-
| oadable,” rather than having a fixed denom nation. “Open
uni verse” cards are oftentines not fixed denom nation cards. He
explained that if a card does not have a fixed denom nation,
this would require the seller to track any additional funds
“| oaded” on. He stated that the $5 rule which is currently
applied in Wshington State “protects the consuner well,” in
addition to being “easy to adm nister.”

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS stated that this is nore difficult for

smal l er businesses, adding that this my becone nore of a
problem when “trying to reconcile the day’'s activity.” He

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -11- January 29, 2007



suggested that the 90 percent rule be renoved or a fixed dollar
amount be used.

4:03: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX inquired as to whether the lack of
expiration date woul d pose a problemto businesses.

MR. DURRANT replied that this would not be a problem When
there is no expiration date, this liability is carried on the
books.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO, in regard to the 90 percent payback
requirenent, opined that it wuld be “in the nerchants best
interest” to refund cards with small percentages, as these are
unlikely to be redeened. He asked if this would be considered
benefi ci al .

4:05:21 PM

MR. DURRANT replied that it is possible to do “split-tender”
transactions. He explained that this allows the custoner to use
the remainder of the card to nmke a partial paynment, using
anot her form of paynment to nake up the difference. This, he
said, would be the ideal approach. He reiterated that using a
fixed dollar anmount woul d be preferable to a percentage.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO clarified that the payback requirenent was
intended to help the businesses by allowing small anmounts to be
“taken of f the books.”

MR. DURRANT, in response, explained that if a gift card is
purchased and given as a gift, there would be no nechani sm by
which to identify the holder of the card, until it is presented
in a store for a purchase. Therefore, the business would be
unable to refund small amounts until this occurred.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said “I'm trying to nake it easy for the
merchant to zero out a card that has too little value, that
m ght be carried around in perpetuity, because no one wll want
to carry it around.”

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS stated that his business currently has $98

thousand in gift certificates on the books. This nunber, he
said, increases by about $5,000 per year, wth 90-95 percent
redenpti on. A credit of $60 thousand was inherited from the

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -12- January 29, 2007



previ ous owner, whi ch was carried over because t he
af orenentioned gift certificates do not expire. He said:

We don't want to redeem a card that has a fracti onal

anount left on it. W want that guest to cone back.
...Studies ... show [that] people ... no matter what
increnent they have, ... are going to spend a little

bit nore than the face value of the [gift cards]. And
frankly, that’s what the business community wants.

And if you leave a fractional anmount, then for us,
it’s a little bit like you re going back out with a
coupon.

4:10: 18 PM

STEVE CLEARY, Executive Director, Al aska Public Interest
Research Goup (AkPIRG, stated that HB 49 is a “good step
towards consumer protection for Al askans.” He cited a recent
Washi ngton Post article, which stated that alnost $25 billion in
gift cards had been sold. This article also pointed out various
problenms with fees, nmany of which were previously nentioned. He
referred to a study by the Mntgonery County, Maryland O fice of
Consunmer Protection, titled “Gft Cards 2006: Retail Cards
Continue to Inprove (with Prodding); Bank Cards Still Have
Probl ens,” which conpares the various types of gift cards, and
stated that he would forward this to the commttee. This study
shows that, in general, stores have a better policy than banks,
which typically have fees. The followng fees may apply:
dormancy, latency, admnistrative, periodic fees, and service
fees. He also pointed out information regarding 18 other states
that have recently passed simlar |egislation, which is
contained in nmenbers’ packets. He said “I'm excited to see
Al aska taking this step, and ... it’s good to see that the
busi ness comunity isn't ... against this bill.” He commented
that while some areas need further «clarification, both for
consunmers and businesses, the basis of the bill is *“what
everybody wants.” | f consuners |ose nobney on cards purchased
for a certain value, regardless of the amount, this will add up
to nmoney that consuners shoul d be receiving.

4:13: 34 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO inquired as to whether gift cards that wll

never be used can be given to non-profit organizations, to be
cashed in for the value of the card.

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -13- January 29, 2007



MR. CLEARY replied that non-profits often have silent auctions
using donated gift certificates, although he is unsure whether
t hese can be cashed in for the dollar val ue.

4:15: 01 PM

M5. LEW S explained that under the Unclainmed Property Act, if a
gift certificate is not used wthin three years, this nust be
turned over to the state.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if the issuer of the gift certificate
is required by law to turn the gift certificate over to the
st at e.

M5. LEWS replied yes.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if a consunmer who did not wish to
use a gift certificate is able to wait three years and then turn
the gift certificate in to Unclainmed Property for a refund.

M5. LEWS replied that this is correct.
REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked whether this actually occurs.

M5. LEWS replied that consunmers often call regarding gift
certificates that are not being honored. She explained that a
phone call to the retailer typically takes care of the issue.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if the business has to turn the gift
certificate over, or if the consuner is able to do this.

M5. LEWS replied that the consuner is able to turn in the gift
certificate.

4:18:12 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked whet her a person who spends $300 on a
“l'ifetime oil change” pronotion at an autonobile repair and

service garage which closed shortly thereafter would be able to
turn this in to Unclaimed Property for a refund.

M5. LEWS replied that this would not apply.
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER inquired as to what steps are taken,

should the nerchant decline to cooperate. In addition, she
asked how often this law is enforced.

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -14- January 29, 2007



M5. LEWS replied that the first step is to make a phone call to
the nmerchant requesting that the certificate be honored. She
stated that in her experience, this has worked each tine. The
next step, she said, would be to send a certified letter
informng the nerchant that the gift certificate is reportable
as unclainmed property, and that interest and penalties may be
assessed.

CHAI R OLSON announced his intention to hold bill until next week
in order for conceptual anendnents to be addressed.

4:20:12 PM
ADJ QURNMVENT
There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
4:20:17 PM

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -15- January 29, 2007



